
Leon County Research and Development Authority 
Development Review Committee 

Variance Hearing 
Collins Building 

2051 East Paul Dirac Drive 
Tallahassee, FL 32310 

 
November 9, 2021 

9:00am 
 

Agenda 
 

Anyone wishing to submit written comments may do so by 9:00am the day before the scheduled meeting date so that 
the comments can be distributed to the Committee. Comments submitted after this time (up to the time of the 
meeting) will be accepted and included in the official record of the meeting. Email comments to: publicinput@inn-
park.com  and reference the meeting title and date in the subject line. Include your name and contact information. 
All times are approximate. 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Welcome/Introductions 
 
3. Approval of Participation by Electronic Means 

In accordance with the Bylaws, there being a quorum of members present in person, the members of 
the Committee present in person are required to approve participation by those participating via 
Electronic Means acknowledging that the COVID-19 pandemic constitutes extraordinary 
circumstances.  
 

4. Modifications to the Agenda 
 

5. Public Comment 
Any public comment received prior to the meeting will be provided to the Committee members in 
addition to any in-person public comment. 
 

6. Approval of Draft Meeting Minutes, October 12, 2021 (Attachment A)  
 

7. North Florida Innovation Labs (Attachments B & D) 
Leon County R&D Authority, Parcel 410327E0050, requests a variance to Section VIII.1(d) to locate 
its East Paul Dirac driveway apron 12.6’ from the nearest adjacent Site line (Parcel 410327E0040) 
rather than the C&R required 50’. A proposed mitigating factor is that the driveway is 197’ from the 
driveway on the adjacent property.   
 

8. Danfoss Expansion (Attachments C & D) 
Danfoss LLC, Parcels 4103202350000 and 410327E0040, requests a variance to Sections II.3, 
VIII.1(d), and IX.1 to locate its parking lot the City required setback of 8’ from the eastern side 
property line, along with the corresponding landscape buffer, rather than the C&R required 25’. An 
existing mature forested area and additional dense landscaping are proposed mitigating factors. 
 

9. New Business 
 

10. Adjourn 

Leon County R&D Authority 
Development Review Committee Meeting | Nov. 9, 2021 

Page 1 of 6

mailto:publicinput@inn-park.com
mailto:publicinput@inn-park.com


 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

   
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

 
  

Leon County Research and Development Authority 
Development Review Committee 

Collins Building 
2051 East Paul Dirac Drive 

Tallahassee, FL 32310 

October 12, 2021 
9:00am – 10:30am 

DRAFT Minutes 

Members in Attendance: Ron Miller, Ben Hood, Kimberly Strobel-Ball 

Members in Attendance Virtually: Brad Richardson 

Guests: Cam Whitlock, Kathryn Stivers, Architects Lewis + Whitlock; Cheryl Poole, Poole Engineering 
& Surveying; Jay Bostwick, Sperry & Associates; Bill Lickson, LCRDA staff. 

1. Call to Order
Ron Miller called the meeting to order at 10:03am.

2. Welcome/Introductions
All present introduced themselves.

3. Approval of Participation by Electronic Means
In accordance with the Bylaws, there being a quorum of members present in person, the members of
the Committee present in person are required to approve participation by those participating via
Electronic Means acknowledging that the COVID-19 pandemic constitutes extraordinary
circumstances.
Kimberly Strobel-Ball offered a motion to allow participation by electronic means. Ben Hood seconded
the motion which passed unanimously with Brad Richardson not voting.

4. Modifications to the Agenda
None.

5. Public Comment
None.

6. Approval of Draft Meeting Minutes, April 14, 2020
Kimberly Strobel-Ball offered a motion to approve the draft meeting minutes. Ben Hood seconded the
motion which passed unanimously.

7. North Florida Innovation Labs
The Leon County R&D Authority is requesting approval of its project to construct a two-story
approximately 40,000 square feet business incubator on 3.51 acres lots 5E and 6E.

Attachment A 
Page 1 of 2

Leon County R&D Authority 
Development Review Committee Meeting | Nov. 9, 2021 

Page 2 of 6



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

  

  

  

 

 
 

 

After discussion, Kimberly Strobel-Ball offered a motion to approve the plan as presented subject to 
submission of a building signage plan, and the driveway apron located on West Paul Dirac Drive either 
being moved to comply with the requirement that it be located no less than 50 feet from the side site 
line or filing a request for a variance. Ben Hood seconded the motion which passed unanimously. 

8. Danfoss Expansion 
Danfoss is requesting approval of its project to construct a 3-story 191,535 square feet manufacturing, 
warehouse, and office building, including approval from the Authority for the proposed underground 
drainage easement from its proposed stormwater management facility to the adjacent lot’s stormwater 
drainage pipe. 
After discussion, Ben Hood offered a motion to approve the project as presented subject to Danfoss 
addressing three outstanding issues: 

1. Addition of a screen wall surrounding the gravel area designated as “container storage” and 
made of the same materials as the building, 

2. Providing a detailed lighting plan, 
3. Subject to clarification from counsel whether a variance request is necessary and if not, how to 

proceed, regarding the 8’ parking lot setback and landscape buffer to be located on the east 
boundary adjoining the Florida Virtual School property (Counsel subsequently confirmed a 
variance would be required.) 

Kimberly Strobel-Ball seconded the motion which passed unanimously. 

9. New Business 
None. 

10. Adjourn 
The meeting adjourned at 10:30am. 

Attachment A 
Page 2 of 2

Leon County R&D Authority 
Development Review Committee Meeting | Nov. 9, 2021 

Page 3 of 6



( �£� 

I_..OVATION 
,>tcPARK 

Declaration of Protective Covenants and Restrictions 

Variance Application 
Property Street Address or Parcel Number: Application Date: 

410327E0050 & 410327E0060 10/19/2021 

Property Tenant Applicant 

legal Name: Mailing Address: 
2051 E. Paul Dirac Drive, Suite 100 Leon County Research and 
Tallahassee, FL 32310 Development Authority 

Applicant's Representative 

Name: Mailing Address: 
Cheryl Poole 2145 Delta Boulevard, Suite 100 
PooleEngineering & Surveying Tallahassee, FL 32303 

Email Address: Phone Number: 

cheryl@poof-eng.com (850) 386-5117
Project Description 

40,000 Square Feet High Tech Business Incubator 

Variance Request(s) 

C&R Description of variance including justification and/or proposed mitigation 

(Attach supplemental information/drawings/reports if necessary) Article Section 

VIII 

/ 

1 (d) 

�
( 

East Paul Dirac driveway apron edge is closer than 50' from nearest adjacent 
Site line. The actual distance is / 2. to ' . 

The approved development site plan for the adjacent property does not 
include a driveway within 100'+ of the adjacent Site line. 

�

Applicant Representative Signature 
/0-Z-c--z.J 

Date Signed 

Vi P. 
Title 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Date received: Initials: __ _ 

Notice mailed: Initials: __ _ 

Notice published: ___ _ Initials: ___ 

VAR2021-10-01 

Attachment B 
Page 1 of 1

Leon County R&D Authority 
Development Review Committee Meeting | Nov. 9, 2021 

Page 4 of 6



l�OVATIOM
PARK

Declaration of Protective Covenants and Restrictions 

Variance Application 
Property Street Address or Parcel Number: Application Date: 
4103202350000 and 410327 E0040 10/20/2021 

Property Tenant Applicant 

Legal Name: Mailing Address: 
Danfoss LLC 1769 E. Paul Dirac Drive 

Tallahassee, FL 32310 

Applicant's Representative 

Name: Mailing Address: 
Cheryl Poole 2145 Delta Blvd., Suite 100 
Poole Engineering & Surveying, Inc. Tallahassee, FL 32303 

Email Address: Phone Number: 
cheryl@poole-eng.com 850-386-5117

Project Description 

247,183 sf Manufacturing and Offices for Danfoss LLC. Includes future phase addition to manufacturing 
building. 

Variance Request(s) 

C&R Description of variance including justification and/or proposed mitigation 

Article Section (Attach supplemental information/drawings/reports if necessary) 

Side setback for the parking was set at 8 feet from the property line to comply with City 
II 3 code requirements. The size of the building and the need for an onsite stormwater pond 

resulted in moving the parking lot to the minimum City setback. However, the adjacent
VIII 1(d) parking lot and building are currently buffered by a mature forested area and is at a 

slightly higher elevation than the proposed site. Plantings along the proposed parking 
lot will include dense holly trees and 3 foot high shrubbery that will further block the IX 1 intrusion of car lights and parking lot activity from the adjacent parcel. These two 
features will adequately mitigate for the reduction in the side setback and landscape 
buffer width of 17 feet. 

Further north the buffering transitions to that abutting another parking lot that is used by 
Danfoss. The east parking lot has a setback of 97 feet from the property line which will 
more than mitigate the western buffer's shortcomings. 

Should the landscape buffer variance not be granted then Danfoss would lose a 
cant amount of parking at 46 spaces. This will detrimentally affect the use of the 

r�
--- sed facility. 

/ I 

OFFICE USE ONLY ( {f'k:_ ..,
Applicant Representative Signature Date received: Initials: ___ 

/0--VJ-2-/ 
Notice mailed: Initials: ___

Date Signed 
Notice published: ____ Initials: ___V.P.

Title 

VAR2021-10-01 

Attachment C 
Page 1 of 1

Leon County R&D Authority 
Development Review Committee Meeting | Nov. 9, 2021 

Page 5 of 6

mailto:cheryl@poole-eng.com


PARCEL ID: 4103202350000

PARCEL ID: 410327 E0040

SD 

SD
 

SD 

14" W
ATER

 

16" LAU
R

EL  

SD
 

UP
 

SD
 

SD 

CCLL 

15" LIVE O
AK

 

SD
 

SD 

SD
 

PARKING LOT 

SD
 

18" LAU
R

EL

SD 

O
AK

 

SD 

C
LU

STER
 

14" U
N

KN
O

W
N

SD 

21" W
ATER

 

SD 

15" C
H

ER
R

Y
 

SD 

12" U
N

KN
O

W
N

 

SD
 

LIG
H

T
PO

LE
 

D
 

6  WOOD 

W
x 

4404, PAGE 1998, LEON COUNTY RECORDS 

21" LAU
R

EL  

Y
 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

CL 

14" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

13" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

30' 

10
' L

AN
D

SC
AP

E 
BU

FF
ER

 

S 82°10'23" E  643.32'  
W

x 
W

x 
W

x 

FOUND 5/8" IRON ROD (NO ID)

DESCRIBED IN  O.R.B. 4404, PAGE

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

W
x 

RO
BERTS AVE

W
x 

W
x 

10.0' 

(60' TO
TAL R

IG
H

T-O
F-W

AY)

10
' V

U
A 

SE
TB

AC
K 

(D
EED

 BO
O

K 182, PAG
E 97, LEO

N
 C

O
U

N
TY O

FFIC
IAL R

EC
O

R
D

S)  

0+00 

U
R

BA
N

 F
O

R
ES

T 
48

,5
93

 S
F 

17" G
U

M
 

12" LAU
R

EL  

19" LAU
R

EL  

40'

21" LAU
R

EL O
AK

NATURAL

W
x 

30" LAU
R

EL  

W
x 

AREA 

22" LAU
R

EL  

10.0' 

13" LAU
R

EL  

13" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 
W

x 

14" LAU
R

EL  

W
x 

18" LAU
R

EL  
W

x 
14" LAU

R
EL  

14" LAU
R

EL  

10.0'

W
x 

W
x AD

 

N
 

12"+10"  
15" LAU

R
EL  

17" LAU
R

EL  

15" LAU
R

EL  

21" LAU
R

EL  

12" LAU
R

EL  

22" LAU
R

EL  
19" LAU

R
EL  

12" W
ATER

 

15" LAU
R

EL  

21" W
ATER

 

10
' L

AN
D

SC
AP

E 
BU

FF
ER

 

U
TILITY PO

LE
 

STO
R

M
G

R
ATE

 

(5) IR
R

IG
ATIO

N
 

VALVES
 

NATURAL

13" W
ATER

 

0+80 

27" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

36.0' 

22" LAU
R

EL  

30" RCP 

16" LAU
R

EL  

20" LAU
R

EL  

15" LAU
R

EL

46.1' 

AREA 

O
AK

 

40'

0+80

59.9' 

17" LAU
R

EL
O

AK
 

13" LAU
R

EL  
13" LAU

R
EL  

EAST LINE OF LANDS DESCRIBED IN O.R.B.

15" LAU
R

EL  

PARCEL ID:

12" LAU
R

EL  

17" LAU
R

EL  

O
AK

 
12" LAU

R
EL

41-03-27-E-09-0 

12" W
ATER

 

21" W
ATER

 

27" LAU
R

EL  

24" W
ATER

40" LAU
R

EL
O

AK
 

O
AK

24" LAU
R

EL  

FIRC #6590

LANDS DESCRIBED IN

16" LAU
R

EL  

O.R.B. 4404, PAGE 1998,
LEON COUNTY RECORDS

BU
FFER

 

STO
R

M
 

S 00°30'09" E 39.42' 

SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF
SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 1

LEON COUNTY, FLORIDA 

20" LAU
R

EL  

21" LAU
R

EL  

14" LAU
R

EL  

POND ACCESS 

 LAU
R

EL  

24.0' 

35.0' 

18" LAU
R

EL  

14" LAU
R

EL  
15" LAU

R
EL  

19" LAU
R

EL  

15" LAU
R

EL
"+18"

15" LAU
R

EL  
O

AK
 

22" LAU
R

EL  

63.0' 

O
AKS

 

NATURALLY WOODED SLOPE

18" LAU
R

EL  

FIR
C

 5/8"
#6412  

10
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K 

15" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

LEO
N

 C
O

U
N

TY R
EC

O
R

D
S

 
N

D
S D

ESC
R

IB
ED

 IN
 O

.R
.B

.

40'  

WITH MATURE TREES

30" RCP
 

62.3' 

40'  

12" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

39.8' 

W
x 

243' 

15" RCP  

W

x 

134.33'  

N 62°26'57" W

N 08°48'35" W

x 
W

PAUL DIRAC DRIVE 

86
°2

8'5
0"

 

30" RCP 

197' 

0+00 

18" RCP 

W
x 

BU
IL

DI
NG

SE
TB

AC
K 

LIG
H

T
PO

LE
 

88.60' 

50
'

25
' L

AN
D

SC
AP

E 
BU

FF
ER

15" RCP
 

50
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K 

RADIUS=436.38'
∆=57°26'44"

BU
FF

ER
 

419.42' 

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E

ARC=437.52'

35
'

N 73°46'30" W
  251.52'  

U
TILITY

 

30" RCP 

30" R
C

P
30" R

C
P

 

Wx 

SD
 

HOLLY TREES 

SHRUBS 

SD 

SD
 

SD 

SD
 

40.7' 

SD
 

12.6' 

SD 

SD
 

SD 

FC
M

#2918  

PUD PARCEL 410327 E0050

O
AK

 

25' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

100.0'

19" PIN
E

 
15" C

H
ER

R
Y

 

O
AK

 

16" LIVE O
AK

 
C

LU
STER

 

20" LIVE O
AK

 

NORTH FLORIDA
INNOVATION LABS

PROPOSED

18" PIN
E

 

24" PIN
E

 

22" W
ATER

 O
AK

 

13" LIVE O
AK

 

O
AK

 

POINT OF BEGINNINGFENCE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF LANDS

EXISTING
PARKING LOTPROPOSED

STRAWBERRY PROPOSED OPAQUE
1998, LEON COUNTY RECORDS

BUSH (TYP) SUPPLEMENT WITH UNDERSTORY
TREES AND SHRUBS AS NEEDED 

FENCE ALONG
TYPE D BUFFER

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF

N 00°04'28" W  411.02'

MAPLE (TYP)BUILDING TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 1 WEST, 81°52'39"
207,283 SF LEON COUNTY, FLORIDA

97.6' ADJACENT LANDS

SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST SOUTH, RANGE 1 WEST, PUD / VACANT

CURB RAMP
FDOT TYPE CR-

12" CROSSWAL 

15" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

13" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

CURB RAMP
FDOT TYPE CR-F 

49
.4

' FDOT TYPE CR-F 
FIRC 5/8" IR #6745
NORTHEAST CORNER OFEAST LINE OF THE

PROPOSED FIRE
HYDRANT

PROPOSED FENCE

R 45'

12" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

O
AK

 

18" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 
22" LAU

R
EL O

AK
 

16" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 
O

AK
 

13" W
ATER

 O
AK

 
20" W

ATER
 O

AK
 

O
AK

 

15" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 
16" LAU

R
EL O

AK
 

O
AK

 
O

AK
 

18" PIN
E

 

O
AK

O
AK

O
AK

 
22" LAU

R
EL O

AK
 

R 45'

O
AK

17" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

PAR
 

FFE = 71.0'
PARCEL 24" STOP
LINE BAR

O
AK

 

O
AK

 

O
AK

 

13" C
H

ER
R

Y
 

O
AK

 

STOP
SIGN

20" PIN
E

 

C
H

ER
R

Y
 

O
AK

 
13" LAU

R
EL O

AK
 

24" PIN
E

 

12" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 
O

AK
 

O
AK

 
O

AK
 

16" LIVE O
AK

 

TYPIC
AL W

O
O

D
 

36
.0

'

O
AK

 
21" LIVE

 
20" LIVE

 

C
O

N
C

R
ETE

 
C

U
R

B & G
U

TTER
 

C
O

N
TR

O
L  

VIRGINIA SWEETSPIRE O
AK

 (TYP) 

75.0'

FLORIDA ELM (TYP) 

DAHOON HOLLY (TYP)STRIPED ISLAND

26
.0

' 

13
.5

' 

475.0'

PHASE II
FUTURE ADDITION
FFE = 71.0' 

CREPE MYRTLE (TYP) 

O
AK

O
AK

 
16" C

H
ER

R
Y

 

16" C
H

ER
R

Y
 

18" G
U

M
O

AK
 

DRAKE ELM (TYP) 
PARCEL ID: 410320235000020235000 
M-1

24.0' 

43.3' 
24.0' 

6' SIDEWALK6' SIDEWALK 18.0' 

20" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

18.0'R 45' 

O
AK

 9.
0'

 

OUTDOOR
PATIO 

O
AK

 

O
AK

 

24" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

21" PIN
E

 

19" LIVE O
AK

 

17" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

20" W
ATER

 O
AK

 8' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

SHIPPING LOADING DOCKS

O
AK

 

90
.1

' O
AK

 

VACANT LANDTRASH MANUFACTURING FLORIDA SUGARPORTION SECTION 3COMPACTORS 

LEON COUNTY RECORDS 

150.0'13.4' 

SHIPPING LOADING RAMP

O.R.B. 2039, PAGE 1744,
LANDS DESCRIBED IN 

PROPOSED FENCE

O
AK

 

24" LAU
R

EL  

O
AK

 

117.0' 

O
AK

 
O

AK
 

(TYP) SPACES 
LOGO WALL

CURB RAMP

8.
0'

 

O
AK

 

6' SIDEWALK

O
AK

 

12" 
C

H
ER

R
Y

 

23" PIN
E

 

TYPE D BUFFERO
AK

 

21 BICYCLE
PARKING 

12" C
H

ER
R

Y
 

30
.0

'

URBAN FOREST 48,593 SF

PROPOSED FIRE
HYDRANT 

27" PIN
E

 

O
AK

 

POND CYPRESS (TYP) 

15" W
ATER

 O
AK

 

S 00°30'09" E 662.40' 

25
.4

' 

13" LAU
R

EL O
AK

219.3' 

12" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

8.
0'

 

O
AK

 

8' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

25
.1

' 
O

AK
 

WAREHOUSE /

PITTOSPORUM6' SIDEWALK

G
R

ATE
 

ADJACENT LANDS
PARCEL ID: 41-03-27-E-002-0

(O.R.B. 2506, PAGE 1285)
PUD / OFFICE

EXISTING BUILDING PROPOSED
LANDSCAPE ISLAND 

FCM #2919
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE 

84
.0

'
31

6.
0'

1/4 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH,
RANGE 1 WEST, LEON COUNTY, FLORIDA 

O
AK

 

O
AK

 

O
AK

 

20" PIN
E

 50' BUILDING SETBACK

18" PIN
E

 

12" C
H

ER
R

Y
 

74
.8

' 

O
AK

 

FLUSH 

LOGO WALL 

18" LIVE O
AK

 
19" LIVE O

AK
 

12" LIVE O
AK

 

O
AK

 

24" PIN
E

R
R

Y
 

O
AK

 

O
AK

 
O

AK
 

STRIPED ISLAND CURB CUT 

12.7'75.0' 

O
AK

 

18" W
ATER

 O
AK

 
15" LAU

R
EL O

AK
 

W 226.58'  
O

AK
 

O
AK

 
17" LAU

R
EL O

AK
 

12" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

S 89°53'47" W
  622.35'  (B

EA
R

IN
G

 B
A

SE)  

RAMP

RECEIVING LOADING
DOCKS 

PUD / VACANT

N 00°30'09" W 157.08'

SW
M

F
 

8' BUFFER WALL
(MATCH BLDG WALL
MATERIAL)BURFORD HOLLY (TYP)

GRAVEL LOT FOR
CONTAINER STORAGE 150.0' 

LIVE OAK (TYP) 

60
.0

' 

FIR
C

 
R

LB 6745

RECEIVING LOADING

22" C
H

ER
R

Y
 

CURB RAMP
FDOT TYPE CR-E 

PROPOSED
FENCE 

17" C
H

ER
R

Y
 

22" LIVE O
AK

 

18" PIN
E

 

14" LAU
R

EL O
AK

 

24" STOP BAR 

STOP
SIGN 

PROPOSED
5' SIDEWALK 

R 45' 

PROPOSED FIRE
HYDRANT 

PARCEL ID: 410327 E004027 E0040 
PUD 

15" U
N

KN
O

W
N

 

CURB RAMP
FDOT TYPE CR-F

3.5' OFF BOC

VAU
LT

 

LIG
H

T
 

PO
LE

 

14" C
H

ER
R

Y
 

15" C
H

ER
R

Y
 

20.0' 

URBAN FOREST
8,251 SF 

TULIP TREE (TYP)CB=S 36°09'14" W
24' DRIVE CONNECTING TO EXISTING PARKING LOT 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITY

9.0' 

CURB RAMP
FDOT TYPE CR-F 

18
.0

' 
SE

E 
SE

C
TI

O
N

 
A-

A

24
.0

' 

24
.0

' 

9.
0'

 

Attachment D 
Page 1 of 1

Leon County R&D Authority 
Development Review Committee Meeting | Nov. 9, 2021 

Page 6 of 6


	2021-11-09 DRC Agenda.pdf
	A- 2021-10-12 Approved DRC mins.pdf
	B- NFIL Innovation Park Variance Application.pdf
	C- Danfoss Innovation Park Variance Application.pdf
	D- Variance Exhibit-Marked.pdf



